TN E

)epartment of

General Services

Central
Procurement Office

AGENDA
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON STATE PROCUREMENT MEETING #044
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020, 2:00 P.M.
TN TOWER - 3"° FLOOR, NASHVILLE ROOM

AGENDA ITEM PASE
l. Call to Order -
[l.  Introduction of New Advisory Council Member - Bob Vincent
Ill.  Approve Minutes from October 29, 2019 MetiNg ......ccccceverererierereneneeeeneseseeeeniens 3
(see attached documentation)
V. New Business
Proposed revisions to the following Central Procurement Office documents
(see attached documentation):
(1) E.#. Capital ASSEt (TDOT)...cireuirierereeeriesteieieesiee sttt sbee e st ee e b et see et se e ns 12
(2) Conflict of Interest (RFQ and RFP TemMPIates).....ccveverrererieinenieeseninienieneseeseeessennns 18
(3) Solicitation Notice and NDA Model - NEW.........cooovivrvevrieeenveniieecreereerrenreenneereeseennes 22
(4) A#. MyTN Integration Language — NEW.....ccccoivveirieveininicenene e 26
(5) GR ANA GG COVEE SNBEL....ii ittt ettt sttt eere st e e s st e e s sbeeessbeessaaessenns 28
(6) Policy NUMDBEI 2013-007 ...ooivieerieirieiirieneeesiesesesieensesessessssessesessessssessessssessssessessssessones 36
(7) Advisory Council BYlaws — NEW.....cc.ccveviriniiiniiinitceeenieeniessieseeesreseseessesessessssessssens 65
V. Other Business -
VI.  Adjournment -

Tennessee Tower, 3rd Floor *« 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue + Nashville, TN 37243

615-741-1035 -

Fax: 615-741-0684 - tn.gov/generalservices




Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

MINUTES OF OCTOBER 29, 2019
MEETING



General Services

MINUTES
ADVISORY COUNCIL ON STATE PROCUREMENT MEETING #043
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2019, 2:00 P.M.
TN TOWER - 3R° FLOOR, NASHVILLE ROOM

Members in Attendance:
Mike Perry, Jason Mumpower, Summer Carr, Ted Hayden, Brad Eskind, Jasmine Quattlebaum,
Sean Newman, Buddy Lea

Members Participating by Phone:
Stu Shunk

Others in Attendance:

Paul Krivacka, Bryan Chriske, Jenny Young, Randy Dean, Debi Moss, Ellen Lipinski, Shannon
Howell, Sean Newman, Davis Nwankwo, Price Hobby, Christy Allen, Robin Upchurch, Kevin Wieck,
Chadwick Nottingham, Trey Norris, Nicholas Edwards, Jennifer Pfeiffer, Shirzad Tayyar

Others Participating by Phone:
Toni Stuart, Angela White

. Call to Order: Mr. Mike Perry, Chief Procurement Officer, called the meeting to order
and recognized that a quorum of voting members was present.

1. Introduction of New Advisory Council Member: Mr. Perry announced Ms. Jasmine
Quattlebaum as a new non-voting member to the Advisory Council (“Council”). She was appointed
by Governor Bill Lee's office. He went on to say that Ms. Quattlebaum is the Director of
Purchasing and Diversified Business Enterprise for the Convention Center for Nashville and
Davidson County and that she is well versed in public policy and public sector procurement.

1. Minutes from the June 5, 2019 Meeting: Mr. Perry asked if there were any corrections
or additions to the minutes from the June 5, 2019 meeting. Seeing none, a motion was made by
Mr. Ted Hayden, Executive Director of Compliance, State of Tennessee Real Estate Asset
Management, to accept the minutes as presented. The motion was seconded by Mr. Jason
Mumpower, Chief of Staff, Comptroller’s Office. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Iv. Announcements: Mr. Mumpower asked Mr. Perry if he could make an announcement
out of personal privilege that Jennifer Pfeiffer was in the audience and was new to her role as
Deputy Chief of Staff for the Comptroller’'s Office. She had been a regular attendee in the pastin
her past role. He stated that they are glad to have Mrs. Pfeiffer with the Comptroller's Office and

Tennessee Tower, 3™ Floor, 312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, Nashville, TN 37243
Tel: 615-741-1035 « Fax: 615-741-0684 - tn.gov/generalservices/



that she and Bryan Chriske were available for assistance. Mr. Perry congratulated Ms. Pfeiffer on
her new role and welcomed her back to the State.

V. New Business:

Mr. Perry asked Paul Krivacka, Lead Attorney/Director of Category Management, Central
Procurement Office, to present the following New Business agenda items:

Mr. Perry asked if any items would be taken together. Mr. Krivacka stated that each of the items
needs to be taken separately.

Mr. Krivacka proceeded to present agenda item (1):

(M Interagency Agreement (“IA") Model and Interagency Agreement - Grant Model
instructions

Mr. Krivacka summarized the following points with regard to the Interagency Agreement (“IA")
Model and Interagency Agreement - Grant Model instructions proposal:

e The instructions have been updated to reflect the current terminology used regarding
the entities that can be parties to Interagency Agreements.

¢ Website links have been included to provide further instructions to procurement
professionals.

Mr. Perry verified that this instrument would be used for an agreement between two State
agencies or the State and an Institution of Higher Education. Mr. Krivacka confirmed.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda item (1), Jason Mumpower, made a motion to recommend
the Interagency Agreement (“|A") Model and Interagency Agreement - Grant Model instructions
proposal as presented to the Procurement Commission for approval. The motion was seconded
Mr. Buddy Lea, Assistant Commissioner, Department of Finance and Administration. All members
voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (2):
(2) Insurance Options instructions

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the Insurance Options instructions
proposal:

e This request is to modify the insurance options to provide greater clarity that a Rule
Exception Request is required for any deviations from insurance requirements.

e Before, language such as “this option may only be used with the approval of the CPO
Risk Manager” has led to some ambiguity as to the appropriate manner to document
such approvals. Adoption of this proposal by the Procurement Commission will mean
that the RER/Risk is the standard method to document approval of any requests to
deviate from the insurance template language.



Mr. Perry stated that using the RER/Risk would also trigger the Comptroller's review and approval,
in addition to the Central Procurement Office. Mr. Krivacka agreed and explained that because
these are all eForms, selecting the correction option would then route it through the correct work
flow for approval.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda item (2), Mr. Lea made a motion to recommend Insurance
Options instructions proposal as presented to the Procurement Commission for approval. The
motion was seconded by Mr. Mumpower. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (3):
(3) No Cost (“NC") and Revenue (“RV") summary cover sheet

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the No Cost (“NC") and Revenue (“RV")
summary cover sheet proposal:

e This request revises the No Cost and Revenue Summary Cover Sheets, particularly at
the “Selection Method & Process Summary” section.

e The Selection Method section contained options such as the alternative competitive
method, which is no longer a recognized procurement method under the rules,
policies and procedures.

e The Selection Method options proposed more closely reflect current business
practices. Procurement professionals will have the option to either indicate that the
contract is the result of a Competitive Award (and to include the Solicitation Number, if
applicable for reference) or “Other” (e.g., Sole Source or Proprietary).

Mr. Lea asked if the No Cost Contract language change and the Revenue contract change were
parallel in the changes for the very same reason and same effect. Mr. Krivacka responded that
essentially, they were being changed for clarity reasons.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda item (3), Mr. Hayden made a motion to recommend No
Cost (“NC") and Revenue (“RV") summary cover sheet proposal as presented to the Procurement
Commission for approval. The motion was seconded by Mr. Lea. All members voted in favor -
none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (4):
(4) Rule Exception Request - Advance Payments - NEW

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the Rule Exception Request - Advance
Payments - NEW proposal:

e In conversation with F&A budget, they have a role with respect to reviewing or dealing
with situations where advance payments involving Federal Grants occur.

e Thisis a new Rule Exception Request form - solely for use with Advance Payments.

e The purpose of adding a new RER is to allow the Department of Finance &
Administration to have oversight with respect to federally funded grants that require
an advance payment.



e F&Ais the department best suited to oversee compliance with cash management
policies and will be the first approver on the new request eForm.

Mr. Krivacka noted a correction that the Comptroller's Office brought to the attention of the
Central Procurement Office. There was a typo on the 3 check boxes of the form. The second box
said Government Grant (“GR") but it should be ("“GG"). The Comptroller's Office suggested that
when there was a motion on item (4) that there should also be a motion to approve the
correction.

Mr. Perry pointed out that this would apply to advance payments for any procurement not
necessarily just a grant (e.g. software that needed to be paid for in advance). Mr. Krivacka clarified
that the typical situation where payment is required in advance is for software maintenance and
support as these vendors do not provide maintenance and support before payment.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda item (4), Mr. Mumpower made a motion to recommend
Rule Exception Request - Advance Payments - NEW proposal as presented to the Procurement
Commission for approval. And as part of that motion, he specified the approval includes the
change, as indicated in item 4 on the form, that the words Governmental Grant (“GG") instead of
(“GR"). The motion was seconded by Mr. Hayden. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (5):

(5) Option: Advance Payment - Software Licenses or Maintenance and Support Agreements -
NEW

Mr. Krivacka presented the Option: Advance Payment - Software Licenses or Maintenance and
Support Agreements - NEW proposals:

e This request adds a new optional payment term for use when an advance
payment is required as a result of software licenses or maintenance and support
agreements.

e The standard C.3. Payment Methodology section requires compensation

contingent upon the satisfactory provision of goods or services, which may not be
applicable in an advance payment situation.

Mr. Perry asked if this too would trigger F&A's approval through workflow. Mr. Krivacka stated
that this particular change would not, as it relates to an FA contract. It would be goods and
services contract that would authorize an advance payment and it would workflow like any other
the other contracts. He also mentioned that the advantage of adopting this optional term is that it
will eliminate the need for an RER. Mr. Krivacka further explained that the previous item (4) dealt
with the approval form, it's a specific prepayment RER form, and that it will trigger an F&A review
because it will give them insight over pre-approval over a grant advance payment.

Mr. Perry asked if there were any questions or comments. Mr. Mumpower asked to confirm his
understanding, that this option will only be included when the contract is exclusively for software
licenses or maintenance and support agreements. He noted that is not for hardware but software
licenses and maintenance of hardware support. Mr. Krivacka agreed that yes it would be for
maintenance in support of hardware.



Mr. Lea had another point of clarification he wanted to make, the other example in item (4) that
talked about advance payment on grants. He stated that he thinks the intent for F&A review and
approval of that item as opposed to item (5) that deals with software maintenance is in fact
making sure that extra layer of financial oversight in a grant that is typically a cost-reimbursement
grant, that allows the advance payment as opposed to on the back end for cost reimbursement,
for any number of reasons, it could be for a small not for profit entity that wouldn't necessarily
have the cash flow to allow for a cost-reimbursement arrangement, particularly if it was a federal
award. The additional oversight for an entity where their financial wherewithal needs an extra
look, is that accurate? Mr. Krivacka agreed and further explained that there are also other things
that he has learned after speaking with F&A that are triggered when making an advance payment.
If the money is not spent within a certain time period, there may be financial obligations that the
State owes to the federal government.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda items (5) Mr. Lea made a motion to recommend Option:
Advance Payment - Software Licenses or Maintenance and Support Agreements - NEW proposal
as presented to the Procurement Commission for approval. The motion was seconded by Mr.
Mumpower. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (6):

(6)  Section C. Payment Methodology Grant Contract (“GR"”) and Governmental Grant (“GG")
instructions

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the Section C. Payment Methodology
Grant Contract (“GR") and Governmental Grant (“GG") instructions proposal:

e The instructions in the GR and GG contract templates have been slightly modified to
clarify that procurement professionals should use the new RER for Advance Payments to
justify a request for an advance payment.

e As mentioned, F&A will be built into the workflow for the new RER for Advance
Payments. Also, there are questions directly related to advance payments, so using the
correct RER eForm for Advance Payments will hopefully reduce additional questions and
workflow issues once submitted for approval.

Mr. Perry mentioned that this proposal was a companion to make changes to the policy and
procedures and Mr. Krivacka confirmed.

Seeing no further discussion on agenda item (6), Mr. Mumpower made a motion to recommend
Section C. Payment Methodology Grant Contract (“GR") and Governmental Grant (“GG")
instructions proposal as presented to the Procurement Commission for approval. The motion
was seconded by Mr. Hayden. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (7):

(7) GU Model E.#. Annual Report and Audit

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the GU Model E.#. Annual Report and



Audit proposal:

e This change to the Annual Report and Audit for use in the GU (for use with a
government entity) changes the reference to F&A Accounts Policy 22 -to CPO Policy
#2013-007 Grant Management and Subrecipient Monitoring Policy and Procedures.

e Also, the threshold dollar amount for the Annual Report for any subrecipient has been
changed from $500,000 to $750,000.

Seeing no discussion on agenda item (7), Ms. Summer Carr, Assistant General Counsel,
Department of Economic and Community Development made a motion to recommend GU Model
E.#. Annual Report and Audit proposal as presented to the Procurement Commission for
approval. The motion was seconded by Mr. Lea. All members voted in favor - none opposed.

Mr. Krivacka then proceeded to present agenda item (8):
(8) Grant Contract (“GR") Template D.19. Audit Report

Mr. Krivacka presented the following points with regard to the Grant Contract (“GR") Template
D.19. Audit Report proposal:

e This request adds a requirement that the grantee submit a copy of the Notice of Audit
Report, Parent Child Form, and Audit Report to the State Agency contact specified in the
grant contract.

e The State Agency has the flexibility to provide the appropriate contact information.

e This will appear in red text in our template documents.

Mr. Perry mentioned that this proposal will add additional communication; in addition to those
reports that currently go to the Comptroller's Office. Mr. Krivacka agreed and further explained
that this was an issue raised during the Sunset Audit and this change will address some of the
issues that were raised during the audit.

Mr. Perry asked if there were any questions or comments. Mr. Mumpower mentioned that
nothing makes him happier than something to fix an audit finding. And he added that they were
already discussing some potential legislation, in the upcoming session of the General Assembly,
which might help address this issue.

Seeing no discussion on agenda item (8), Mr. Mumpower made a motion to recommend the
proposed Grant Contract (“GR") Template D.19. Audit Report proposal as presented to the
Procurement Commission for approval. The motion was seconded by Mr. Lea. All members
voted in favor - none opposed.

VI. Other Business: Mr. Perry presented the Council with the proposed Advisory Council on
State Procurement Bylaws and Rules of Procedures for review and discussion. This, too, was
recommended in the most recent audit and the CPO concurs. Mr. Perry, at the will of the Council,
asked if there were any questions or comments and if the Council was ready to move for adoption
of the proposed Advisory Council on State Procurement Bylaws and Rules of Procedures or does
this need to be deferred to a future meeting.



Mr. Krivacka summarized the bylaws by stating that there was an audit finding relative to the lack
of bylaws and a lack of conflict of interest disclosure for Advisory Council members. The adoption
of these bylaws and a conflict of interest disclosure will address those audit findings and close
that issue. It will also add another requirement that will address an audit finding, which is
member attendance. Member attendance in the past has been somewhat problematic and
adoption of this proposal will require that members miss no more than two consecutive
meetings. Mr. Krivacka asked that the motion include a modification at section 2. The statutory
citation should be 84-56-106 (b)(3). And then again at section 3, the statutory citation should be
84-56-106 (g).

Mr. Mumpower stated that he had a question and in addressing the question would use himself
as an example. He stated that the Comptroller feels strongly about his sitting on this Council,
however, duties, particularly during the legislative session, keep him from being to be able to
attend every meeting. When those situations occur, the Comptroller takes care to appoint a
designee in writing. Mr. Mumpower said that in discussing this, it is the belief that the seat that he
sits in today is seated in the Office of the Comptroller and so long as the Comptroller has a duly
appointed designee named for the meeting, the Comptroller's seat on the Council would be
considered to be in attendance. Mr. Mumpower added that the same would hold true for each
agency. He stated he believes what we are getting at is that in order to have a healthy Council, we
need healthy attendance. Mr. Perry agreed and suggested adding some language to cover
designees. Mr. Krivacka agreed to further clarifying.

Mr. Mumpower came prepared with some potential language. He stated that he is prepared to
make a motion on the following language. “If a member misses more than two consecutive
meetings without having a named alternate or designee by the appointing authority, the member
may be considered ineligible for service during the remainder of their term”. Mr. Perry asked if
we needed to clarify further that it would apply to voting and non-voting members. Mr. Krivacka
confirmed. Mr. Mumpower mentioned there would be a question there as well, that the statute
really names the members, so to say, if a member misses more than two consecutive meetings
without having a named or alternate designee by the appointing authority. Meaning that the
Comptroller didn't name a designee in two meetings past then it says they may be considered
ineligible. He stated that he did not know if that wouldn't be contrary to the statute and that the
bylaws could exempt the Comptroller or any agency from being eligible. Mr. Perry stated that he
thinks there needs to be some clarification to say that the appointee could appoint another
designee and the seat cannot be eliminated. And there are other means of participating
electronically. Mr. Krivacka mentioned the statute that deals with ability to participate
telephonically versus being in person and basically requires that so long as there is a quorum
present during the meeting, other members can participate telephonically. Mr. Perry stated that
some of the non-voting members are domiciled out of town, so it might not be convenient for
them to attend in person, so they frequently join by phone

Mr. Perry made a motion to take Mr. Mumpower’s language and tweak it to provide for that
instance, make the other two corrections, and recirculate the Advisory Council on State
Procurement Bylaws and Rules of Procedures to the membership for final approval and defer it to
the next meeting, or if the committee is comfortable we can adopt in writing by members. Mr.
Mumpower stated that he thought it might be better to defer to the next meeting. Mr. Hayden
agreed and made a motion. Mr. Mumpower also agreed and stated before this is closed out, in
item number 4 where it says conflict of interest, it currently reads that “each member shall sign a



conflict of interest statement” and it currently reads “substantially similar to the one as attached”.
He wanted to clarify that he is moved to strike the words “substantially similar to the one” and ask
the committee to go ahead and adopt the one and instead of saying substantially similar to the
one, just say “each member shall sign a conflict of interest statement as attached”. Then the form
can be circulated and there will not be any questions about that. Mr. Mumpower also mentioned
that on the form, as has been circulated, there’s an idea that has been discussed today,
sometimes there will be designees different from meeting to meeting. He suggested that there
may need to be a line seven added that says something like “to the extent that the council
members appointing authority has named an alternate or designee, this conflict of interest
statement shall also apply to the alternate or designee”. Mr. Perry agreed. Mr. Mumpower added
to Mr. Hayden's motion to roll it into one motion. Mr. Perry agreed and stated the Central
Procurement Office would make all the corrections and suggestions that were made today,
recirculate it to the members for further review and suggestions, and present a final version at
the next meeting.

Mr. Lea added one clarifying question on Mr. Mumpower’s recommendation. He asked if there
were another designee, who was not the original member, whether that signature by the member
would be sufficient to bind the alternate or whether we would want the alternate’s signature as
well. Mr. Mumpower agreed that was a valid question and asked to use another board as an
example. He went on to explain that the Comptroller has a designee on the Certificate of Needs
Board or whatever it is known as today, if the Comptroller names an alternate for that board, they
have to sign a conflict of interest statement before serving, even if they are only doing it one time.
He noted that it would be reasonable to say that if a named designee shows up and they have not
served in the past, that prior to the meeting beginning, they should be presented with and asked
to sign a conflict of interest statement, if they feel like they can. If they read it and feel like they
can't sign, perhaps they are not allowed to serve that day. Mr. Perry agreed and said that CPO
may need to clarify that if someone serves more than once, if they've acknowledged that conflict
of interest that initial time, that would cover that person for the rest of the year/term. Mr.
Mumpower agreed and stated that the designee’s conflict of interest statement should last the
remainder of the seat's term. Mr. Lea asked if the intent was the length of applicability of the
signature for the term of that member’s appointment. Mr. Mumpower suggested that, or it be
done once a year. Mr. Perry suggested that we go back and look at the language that was in the
Sunset Audit and see if it recommends annually or term because we want to make sure we
conform to that particular suggestion.

Seeing no discussion, a motion was already made and seconded. All members voted in favor -
none opposed

Adjournment: Seeing no other business, a motion for adjournment was made by Mr.
Mumpower. All members voted in favor - none opposed; whereupon the October 29, 2019
Advisory Council meeting was adjourned.



Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

E.#. CAPITAL ASSET (TDOT)
REDLINE



REQUEST: Revise the optional E.#. language for the Tennessee Department of
Transportation provided in the Grant Contract (GR) and Governmental
Grant (GG) Templates as follows:

E.#. Capital Asset. The Grantee agreesshall:
remecihe
(a) Use one or more vehicles, equipment, or facilities (“Capital Asset”) acquired under this Grant
Contract only for the purposes and the manner set forth in theirthe Grantee’s application.

(b) AtCertify at the beginning of each calendar year, the-Grantee-shall-certify-that the equipment
receivedCapital Asset acquired under this Grant Contract is still being used in accordance

with the terms and provisions of this agreementGrant Contract.

(c) FepayPay all fees on the equipmentCapital Asset acquired through this Grant_Contract,
including but not limited to; title and registration fees.

(d) Te-beBe responsible for all costs and expenses related to the operation, maintenance, and
repair of the equipmentCapital Asset acquired through this Grant AgreementContract.

(e) Fe-provideProvide licensed drivers, as required by the Tennessee Department of Safety and
Homeland Security, for operation of all vehicles or equipment received under this Grant
Contract.

(f) Fe-prevideCarry insurance of-allvehicles-acquired-under-this-Grantforon Capital Assets

sufficient to cover the State interest, and the Federal interest if applicable, in the Capital
Asset.

1. If the Grantee is governed by the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act (Tenn.

Code Ann. § 29-20-101 et seq.), then the following insurance coverage is required:

a) Bodily injury or death of any one person in any one accident, occurrence or act at
a minimum ameunts:of $300,000.00 per person.

b) Bodily injury or death of all persons in any one accident, occurrence or act at a
minimum of $700,000.00 per accident.

c) Injury to or destruction of property of others in any one accident at a minimum of
$100,000.00.

2. If the Grantee is not governed by the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act,
then the following insurance coverage is required:

a) Personal Injury Liability — minimum of $300,000.00 per person and
$1,000,000.00 per incident.

b) Property Damage Liability — minimum of $300,000.00 per incident.

c) Comprehensive — maximum deductible of $500.00.

d) Collision — maximum deductible of $500.00.

e) Uninsured Motorist — minimum of $50,000.00 per person and $100,000.00 per
incident.

3. ————Additionally, if applicable, the Grantee shall comply with the provisions of
Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
4012a(a), with respect to any project activity involving construction or an acquisition
having an insurable cost of $10,000.00 or more.




This insurance shall be in effect at all times while the vehieleCapital Asset is used for public
transportation services or service vehicle purposes in operations. The Grantee shall furnish
the State with evidence of such insurance at the time the eguipmentCapital Asset is
delivered to the Grantee and annually on the anniversary date of the delivery of the
eguipmentCapital Asset. Upon demand by the State, the Grantee shall provide proof of
insurance at any time during the term of useful life of eguipmentthe Capital Asset.

{H(a)  FhatEnsure that any vehicles received under this Grant Contract will comply with the
Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (“EMVSS”) as established by the United States
Department of Transportation.

{en(h) FhatEnsure that any vehiclesCapital Asset received under this Grant Contract shall be
used for not less than the useful life-, except with the State’s prior written approval. The
useful life of all vehiclesCapital Assets purchased under the grantGrant Contract is as listed
in the grant document filed with the Federal Transit Administration {(“FTA)"). Upon reaching
the expiration of the useful life of the equipmentCapital Asset, the stateState may ask the
Grantee to provide written notice to the State.




Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

E.#. CAPTIAL ASSET (TDOT)
CLEAN



REQUEST: Revise the optional E.#. language for the Tennessee Department of
Transportation provided in the Grant Contract (GR) and Governmental
Grant (GG) Templates as follows:

E.#. Capital Asset. The Grantee shall:

(a) Use one or more vehicles, equipment, or facilities (“Capital Asset”) acquired under this Grant
Contract only for the purposes and the manner set forth in the Grantee’s application.

(b) Certify at the beginning of each calendar year, that the Capital Asset acquired under this
Grant Contract is still being used in accordance with the terms and provisions of this Grant
Contract.

(c) Pay all fees on the Capital Asset acquired through this Grant Contract, including but not
limited to title and registration fees.

(d) Be responsible for all costs and expenses related to the operation, maintenance, and repair
of the Capital Asset acquired through this Grant Contract.

(e) Provide licensed drivers, as required by the Tennessee Department of Safety and Homeland
Security, for operation of all vehicles or equipment received under this Grant Contract.

(f) Carry insurance on Capital Assets sufficient to cover the State interest, and the Federal
interest if applicable, in the Capital Asset.

1. If the Grantee is governed by the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act (Tenn.

Code Ann. § 29-20-101 et seq.), then the following insurance coverage is required:

a) Bodily injury or death of any one person in any one accident, occurrence or act at
a minimum of $300,000.00 per person.

b) Bodily injury or death of all persons in any one accident, occurrence or act at a
minimum of $700,000.00 per accident.

c) Injury to or destruction of property of others in any one accident at a minimum of
$100,000.00.

2. If the Grantee is not governed by the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act,
then the following insurance coverage is required:

a) Personal Injury Liability — minimum of $300,000.00 per person and
$1,000,000.00 per incident.

b) Property Damage Liability — minimum of $300,000.00 per incident.

c) Comprehensive — maximum deductible of $500.00.

d) Collision — maximum deductible of $500.00.

e) Uninsured Motorist — minimum of $50,000.00 per person and $100,000.00 per
incident.

3. Additionally, if applicable, the Grantee shall comply with the provisions of Section
102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
4012a(a), with respect to any project activity involving construction or an acquisition
having an insurable cost of $10,000.00 or more.

This insurance shall be in effect at all times while the Capital Asset is used for public
transportation services or service vehicle purposes in operations. The Grantee shall furnish



the State with evidence of such insurance at the time the Capital Asset is delivered to the
Grantee and annually on the anniversary date of the delivery of the Capital Asset. Upon
demand by the State, the Grantee shall provide proof of insurance at any time during the
term of useful life of the Capital Asset.

(g) Ensure that any vehicles received under this Grant Contract will comply with the Federal
Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (“FMVSS”) as established by the United States Department
of Transportation.

(h) Ensure that any Capital Asset received under this Grant Contract shall be used for not less
than the useful life, except with the State’s prior written approval. The useful life of all Capital
Assets purchased under the Grant Contract is as listed in the grant document filed with the
Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”). Upon reaching the expiration of the useful life of the
Capital Asset, the State may ask the Grantee to provide written notice to the State.



Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
(RFQ AND RFP TEMPLATEYS)

REDLINE



REQUEST: Revise the Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) Template and Request for Proposals
(“RFP”) Template as follows:

RFQ Template:

4.3. Conflict of Interest

4.3.1. The State may not consider a proposal from an individual who is, or within the past six (6)
months has been, a State employee. For these purposes,

4.3.1.1. Anindividual shall be deemed a State employee until such time as all compensation for
salary, termination pay, and annual leave has been paid;

4.3.1.2. A contract with or a proposal from a company, corporation, or any other contracting entity
in which a controlling interest is held by any State employee shall be considered to be a
contract with or proposal from the employee; and

4.3.1.3. A contract with or a proposal from a company, corporation, or any other contracting entity
that employs an individual who is, or within the past six months has been, a State
employee shall not be considered a contract with or a proposal from the employee and
shall not constitute a prohibited conflict of interest.

4.3.2. This RFQ is also subject to Tenn. Code Ann. § 12-4-101—105.

RFP Template:

3.3.8. The State shall not consider a response from an individual who is, or within the past six
(6) months has been, a State employee. For purposes of this RFP:

3.3.8.1. Anindividual shall be deemed a State employee until such time as all
compensation for salary, termination pay, and annual leave has been paid;

3.3.8.2. A contract with or a response from a company, corporation, or any other
contracting entity in which a controlling interest is held by any State employee
shall be considered to be a contract with or proposal from the employee; and

3.3.8.3. A contract with or a response from a company, corporation, or any other
contracting entity that employs an individual who is, or within the past six (6)
months has been, a State employee shall not be considered a contract with or a
proposal from the employee and shall not constitute a prohibited conflict of
interest.

3.3.9. This RFP is also subject to Tenn. Code Ann. 8§ 12-4-101—105.




Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
(RFQ AND RFP TEMPLATEYS)

CLEAN



REQUEST: Revise the Request for Qualifications (“RFQ”) Template and Request for Proposals
(“RFP”) Template as follows:

RFQ Template:

4.3. Conflict of Interest

4.3.1. The State may not consider a proposal from an individual who is, or within the past six (6)
months has been, a State employee. For these purposes,

4.3.1.1. Anindividual shall be deemed a State employee until such time as all compensation for
salary, termination pay, and annual leave has been paid;

4.3.1.2. A contract with or a proposal from a company, corporation, or any other contracting entity
in which a controlling interest is held by any State employee shall be considered to be a
contract with or proposal from the employee; and

4.3.1.3. A contract with or a proposal from a company, corporation, or any other contracting entity
that employs an individual who is, or within the past six months has been, a State
employee shall not be considered a contract with or a proposal from the employee and
shall not constitute a prohibited conflict of interest.

4.3.2. This RFQ is also subject to Tenn. Code Ann. § 12-4-101—105.

RFP Template:

3.3.8. The State shall not consider a response from an individual who is, or within the past six
(6) months has been, a State employee. For purposes of this RFP:

3.3.8.1. Anindividual shall be deemed a State employee until such time as all
compensation for salary, termination pay, and annual leave has been paid;

3.3.8.2. A contract with or a response from a company, corporation, or any other
contracting entity in which a controlling interest is held by any State employee
shall be considered to be a contract with or proposal from the employee; and

3.3.8.3. A contract with or a response from a company, corporation, or any other
contracting entity that employs an individual who is, or within the past six (6)
months has been, a State employee shall not be considered a contract with or a
proposal from the employee and shall not constitute a prohibited conflict of
interest.

3.3.9. This RFP is also subject to Tenn. Code Ann. § 12-4-101—105.



Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

SOLICIATION NOTICE AND
NDA MODEL

NEW



02-20-20 CI-POST

Agency Letterhead

SOLICITATION NOTICE
INSERT DATE

Service Providers:

The State of Tennessee is issuing a solicitation to provide GOODS OR SERVICES CAPTION to the State. Please
note the following solicitation highlights:

SOLICITATION ID #

Scope of Goods or
Service

Procuring State Agency

Response Deadline

Solicitation Coordinator
Contact Information

This solicitation is unique in that it has been identified by the Department of Finance and Administration,
Strategic Technology Solutions as containing information that is confidential under Tenn. Code Ann. § 10-7-
504(i). Therefore, a non-disclosure agreement must be signed before the solicitation details may be disclosed by
the State.

If you are interested in responding to this solicitation, please complete the attached non-disclosure agreement
and return it to the Solicitation Coordinator. The above solicitation includes a document on “How to Register to

do Business with the State of Tennessee.” Please note that it can take approximately 10-14 days to become

registered. We appreciate your interest in doing business with the State of Tennessee and hope that you will
consider responding to this solicitation.

Event <INSERT EVENT NUMBER>


https://www.tn.gov/generalservices/procurement/central-procurement-office--cpo-/supplier-information.html
https://www.tn.gov/generalservices/procurement/central-procurement-office--cpo-/supplier-information.html
https://www.tn.gov/generalservices/procurement/central-procurement-office--cpo-/supplier-information.html
https://www.tn.gov/generalservices/procurement/central-procurement-office--cpo-/supplier-information.html

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE
NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Nondisclosure Agreement for <INSERT SOLICITATION NUMBER> (hereinafter referred to as the
"Agreement") is effective upon signature by the SUPPLIER LEGAL ENTITY NAME (Supplier having its principal
place of business at SUPPLIER’S ADDRESS (“Supplier”). The Supplier agrees as follows:

1. Materials, records, notes, logs, diagrams, drawings and any other information or records,
regardless of form, medium or method of communication, provided to the Supplier by the State or acquired by
the Supplier on behalf of the State, as well as all information derived or resulting from merges, matches, or other
uses of the information shall be regarded as Confidential State Data. Confidential State Data shall also include,
but shall not be limited to:

(i) electronic information processing systems, telecommunications systems, or other
communications systems of the State (collectively, “Government Property”);

(i) plans, security codes, passwords, combinations, or computer programs used to protect
electronic information and Government Property;

(iii) information that would identify those areas of structural or operational vulnerability

that would permit unlawful disruption to, or interference with, the services provided by
a governmental entity;

(iv) information that could be used to disrupt, interfere with, or gain unauthorized access to
electronic information or Government Property; and
(v) the identity of another Supplier providing goods and services to the State that are used

to protect electronic information processing systems, telecommunication and other
communication systems, data storage systems, government employee information, or
information related any person or entity.

2. The Supplier shall safeguard and hold in strict confidence all Confidential State Data and shall
not disclose the Confidential State Data to third parties without the written consent of the State. The Supplier
shall further restrict disclosure of Confidential State Data to only those employees who have a need to know and
who have executed a nondisclosure agreement to protect the Confidential State Data with terms equivalent to
this Agreement.

3. Nothing in this Agreement shall permit the Supplier to disclose any Confidential State Data,
regardless of whether it has been disclosed or made available to the Supplier due to intentional or negligent
actions or inactions of agents of the State or third parties. Confidential State Data shall not be disclosed except
as required under state or federal law. To the fullest extent allowable under applicable law or regulation, the
Supplier shall promptly notify and provide to the State a reasonable opportunity to oppose any disclosure
required under state or federal law.

4. The Supplier acknowledges that Confidential State Data delivered by the State to the Supplier
shall be for the purpose of exploration of business opportunities involving the State and the Supplier. No other
use of the Confidential State Data is granted without the written consent of the State. In the event the State
gives its approval for the Supplier to disclose Confidential State Data to a third party, the Supplier shall ensure
that all such disclosures are marked with appropriate legends, the receiving third party enters into an non-



disclosure agreement to protect Confidential State Data with terms as least as protective as those contained this
Agreement, and any other conditions reasonably required by the State in order to preserve the confidential
nature of the information and the State's rights therein.

5. All obligations set forth under this Agreement shall survive any termination of this Agreement.
Upon termination, the Supplier shall promptly destroy all Confidential State Data it holds (including any copies
such as backups) in accordance with the current version of National Institute of Standards and Technology
Special Publication 800-88.

6. This Agreement shall not be construed as a teaming, joint venture or other such arrangement;
rather, the parties hereto expressly agree that this Agreement is for the purpose of protecting Confidential State
Data only.

7. If any terms and conditions of this Agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable as a
matter of law, the other terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall remain in full
force and effect. The terms and conditions of this Agreement are severable.

8. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Tennessee, without regard to its conflict or choice of law rules. The Tennessee Claims Commission or the state
or federal courts in Tennessee shall be the venue for all claims, disputes, or disagreements arising under this
Agreement. The Supplier acknowledges and agrees that any rights, claims, or remedies against the State of
Tennessee or its employees arising under this Agreement shall be subject to and limited to those rights and
remedies available under Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 9-8-101 - 408.

9. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to convey to Supplier any right, title or interest or
copyright in the Confidential State Data, or any license to use, sell, exploit, copy or further develop the
Confidential State Data.

10. This Agreement is complete and contains the entire understanding between the Parties relating
to its subject matter, including all the terms and conditions of the Parties’ agreement. This Agreement may only
be modified by a written amendment signed by the Supplier and approved by all applicable State officials.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the Supplier and is effective as of the date signed

below:

INSERT SUPPLIER LEGAL ENTITY NAME

By:

Name:
Title:
Date:




Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

A#. MYTN INTEGRATION LANGUAGE

NEW



REQUEST: Add the following to the Edison document configurator and to the Fee for Goods
or Services Contract Template (FA) instructions, considerations, and options as
follows:

Option: MyTN.gov Integration

If the Contract involves software: (1) add the following MyTN.gov Integration term to Section A. Scope;
and (2) add the Additional Lines, Items, or Options contract term to Section E.#. Special Terms and
Conditions

A#. MyTN.gov Integration.

a. The State may require the software developed or provided by the Contractor under this Contract to
integrate with the State’s customer-facing portal, MyTN.gov. Such integration may occur at any time
during the Term of the Contract. If so, the Contractor may have to comply with one, or more, of the
following integration requirements:

(1) All web applications must be Responsive. “Responsive” is an industry standard term that refers
to a web design that makes web pages render well on a variety of devices and window or
screen sizes.

(2) All web applications must have the capability to use a single-sign on server utilizing the
following industry standard protocols: Security Assertion Markup Language (“SAML") or
minimum of OAuth 2.0.

b. Any of the obligations in Section A.#.a that were known and required prior to Contract Effective Date
will be specified herein, including necessary compensation methods and amounts.

c. For any of the obligations in Section A.#.a that were unknown or not required at Contract Effective
Date, it will be necessary to add lines, items, or options to the Contract to accommodate one or
more of the new integration requirements. The State shall add these lines, items, or options in
accordance with the MOU process described in Section E.#, below. If the Contractor requires
additional compensation for the integration tasks, such compensation shall be negotiated and
specified through this same MOU process.




Attachments to Agenda
Advisory Council Meeting — February 10, 2020

GR AND GG COVER SHEET

REDLINE



REQUEST: Revise the Grant Contract (“GR”) and Governmental Grant Contract (“GG”) Template
coversheets as follows:

% GRANT CONTRACT

i (cost reimbursement grant contract with an individual, business, non-profit, or governmental
entity of another state or country)

Begin Date End Date Agency Tracking # Edison ID

Grantee Legal Entity Name Edison Vendor ID

Subrecipient or
ContractorRecipient CEDA #

|:| Subrecipient |:|

ContractorRecipient

Grantee’s fiscal year end

Service Caption (one line only)

Funding —
FY State Federal Interdepartmental Other TOTAL Grant Contract Amount

TOTAL:

Ownership/Control
|:| Minority Business Enterprise (MBE):
|:| African American |:| Asian American |:| Hispanic American |:| Native American
|:| Woman Business Enterprise (WBE)
|:| Service-Disabled Veteran Enterprise (SDVBE)
|:| Disabled Owned Businesses (DSBE)

I:' Small Business Enterprise (SBE): $10,000,000.00 averaged over a three (3) year period or employs no more
than ninety-nine (99) employees.

|:| Government |:| Non-Minority/Disadvantaged |:| Other:

Grantee Selection Process Summary




|:| Competitive Selection Describe the competitive selection process used.

I:' Non-competitive Selection Describe the reasons for a non-competitive grantee selection process.

Budget Officer Confirmation: There is a balance in the CPO USE - GR
appropriation from which obligations hereunder are
required to be paid that is not already encumbered to pay
other obligations.

Speed Chart (optional) Account Code (optional)




¢3) agents and

GOVERNMENTAL GRANT CONTRACT

(cost reimbursement grant contract with a federal or Tennessee local governmental entity or their

instrumentalities)
Begin Date End Date Agency Tracking # Edison ID
Grantee Legal Entity Name : Edison Vendor ID
Subrecipient or
ContractorRecipient CFDA #

|:| Subrecipient

|:| ContracterRecipient

Grantee's fiscal year end

Service Caption (one line only)

Funding —
Interdepartmenta
FY State Federal | Other TOTAL Grant Contract Amount
TOTAL:
Grantee Selection Process Summary